
DIVIDER PAGE 

 

MINUTES AND FINANCIALS 

 

  



RAINBOW WATER DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
 

Date: December 13, 2023 
Time: 6:22 PM 
Place:  Rainbow Water District Office/Virtual 

1 | P a g e  

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT IN PERSON: Marla Casley, Jim McLaughlin, Doug Keeler, 
Lou Allocco, and Mindy Kephart 

BUDGET COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: James Burrington  
STAFF PRESENT: Jamie Porter, Jodi Sanders, and Brian Scott 
 
Doug Keeler opened the Board Meeting at 6:22 pm.  
 
AGENDA REVIEW 
No new items.   

REVIEW ITEMS 

1. The minutes from November 8, 2023, were presented for approval. Marla Casley noted 

an update needed to be made in the review items section for the month being 

reviewed.  Jim McLaughlin moved to approve the minutes as amended.  Marla Casley 

seconded the motion.  Motion passed 5-0. 

2. The financial reports for November 2023 were presented for approval.  Lou Allocco 

moved to accept the financial reports and pay the bills.  Mindy Kephart seconded the 

motion.  Motion passed 5-0. 

3. November 2023 Financial Report Review:  Doug Keeler reviewed 3 transactions and 

approved the November 2023 audit trail report.  The missing checks report for 

November 2023 was reviewed and approved, check numbers are 17179 - 17221 and 

there were no breaks in sequence.  There was one new vendor, QSL Print 

Communications for the 75th anniversary calendars.   

 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 

None  

 

BUSINESS FROM THE BOARD 

Per Jim, there are no LCOG updates.   

 

BUSINESS FROM THE SUPERINTENDENT 

1. Registration is open for the annual SDAO conference.  Staff and board members are 

invited to attend.  No board members are available to addend this year, but the board 

support attendance by Budget Committee member James Burrington.   

2. Brian Scott has been promoted to Lead Water Operator after successfully completing  

the crane training certification.   



RAINBOW WATER DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
 

Date: December 13, 2023 
Time: 6:22 PM 
Place:  Rainbow Water District Office/Virtual 

2 | P a g e  

3. The SUB leak detection survey has been completed.  Jamie showed examples of map 

pages showing where leaks were indicated and Brian explained how the crew followed 

up on investigating them.   

4. There is a pending annexation at 1717 Kellogg due to a septic system failure.  The 

property and part of the road could be annexed, as early as June 30, 2024.   

5. Jamie presented a history of the streetlight policy, inventory, and responsibility Rainbow 

has for maintenance and power costs.  There was a discrepancy in the streetlight 

ownership and responsibility for 11 streetlights along Centennial Boulevard and Game 

Farm Road between the city and county. After research, Jamie discovered that Rainbow 

accepted responsibility for those streetlights in an IGA dated back to 1996.  Those 11 

streetlights will be added back into Rainbow’s inventory to make a total of 85.  

6. Jamie presented Resolution No. 2023-25, A Joint Resolution of the Board of Directors 

and Local Contract Review Board Amending Public Contracting Rules for the Rainbow 

Water District.  The highlighted changes:  Increasing the spending limit on a small “sole 

source” procurement to $25,000.00.  Increasing the spending limit on an intermediate 

“informal 3-quote” procurement to $250,000.00.   

a. Doug Keeler opened a meeting of the Local Contract Review Board to consider 

the Resolution at 7:00 pm.   

b. Lou Allocco moved to adopt Resolution No. 2023-25.  Marla Casley seconded the 

motion.  Motion passed 5-0. 

c. Doug Keeler closed the meeting of the Local Contract Review Board at 7:07 pm. 

7. The Lane County Diaper Bank Diaper Drive has been scheduled for January 2024.   

8. There was a joint exercise with the Springfield Utility Board (SUB), Eugene Water and 

Electric Board (EWEB), and Rainbow Water District (RWD), to locate and discuss the 

Fifth Street Intertie.  This intertie is a historic connection between the three water 

districts.  RWD began purchasing water through this intertie from EWEB in 1959.  

Upgrades and exercising of this intertie to determine its operational status are being 

planned.   

 

75 TH ANNIVERSARY PLANNING 

1. Jamie presented an idea to the Board to rent a billboard for a portion of our 75th 

year to congratulate and wish the district a Happy Birthday.  After discussion, it was 

determined that it is a fun idea but that cost, and optics are a concern. Jamie has 

been asked to continue to gather quotes from billboard companies for the Board to 

consider at a future meeting.   



RAINBOW WATER DISTRICT BOARD MEETING 
 

Date: December 13, 2023 
Time: 6:22 PM 
Place:  Rainbow Water District Office/Virtual 

3 | P a g e  

2. Jamie and Jodi met with a member of the Springfield Chamber of Commerce that 

indicated the chamber might be interested in partnering with the district to host an 

event.  Jamie will be reaching out with more details.   

 

Upcoming scheduled Board Meetings:   Executive Session 12/20/2023 

      Regular Session Meeting 1/10/2024 

      Joint Work Session with SUB 1/11/2024 

Doug Keeler adjourned the meeting at 7:22 pm.   



VENDOR PURPOSE

 Water & Fire 

Fund  PAID/ACH

AT&T Service for on call hot spots 43.23                *

Abrim Lawrence Refund final bill 5.19                  *

Alarm Solutions Quarterly alarm monitoring 267.00              

Amazon Office and maintenance supplies 232.00              

AnSer Answering service 105.00              

Blue Fin Credit card transaction fee processing 1,382.82           *

Calhoun and DeJong Filters for Chase Water Treatment Plant 9,142.85           

Century Link Fax line 77.68                *

Christina Woods Refund final bill 25.45                *

City of Springfield 1/2 FY 2023-24 Fire protection contract 619,415.50       

Coburg Road Quarry Rock for service and main breaks 282.26              

Comcast Business Phone, internet and cable service 514.88              

Commercial Air HVAC Service 135.00              

Copy Rite Printing Door hangers 75.00                

Curt's Concrete Cutting Asphalt cute for main repairs 250.00              

Edge Analytical Water testing 274.40              

EWEB I5 Pump power 7,650.82           

Ferguson Stock service line replacement 489.73              

HACH Reagent sets 314.00              

Internal Revenue Service Payroll withholding and expense - December 2023 13,830.44         *

Jamie Porter Expense Reimbursement:  Office supplies 115.44              

JCI Jones Chlorine 2,197.18           

Jerry's Supplies for maintenance and service line repairs 330.75              

Jill Lindsay Mileage reimbursement for December 2023 67.20                

Kelley Connect Copier contract 40.92                

Key Bank Mastercard charges 1,599.82           

Krystyne Land Refund final bill 17.06                *

Lane Forest Products Rock, soil and landscaping materials 179.90              

Les Schwab Tires for pump testing trailer 687.88              

Mallory Masks and PPE for MWD and DCWA 119.28              

MW Coffee Coffee for office 21.50                

NAPA Auto Parts Tools and wiper blades 93.46                

Nash Janitorial Office cleaning 320.00              

Olsson Industrial SCADA system maintenance 201.00              

One Call Concepts UNC tickets 60.20                

Oregon Department of Revenue Payroll withholding and expense - December 2023 3,885.85           *

Orton Consulting IT Support 2,320.00           

PacificSource Administrators HRA Claim activity - November 2023 2,779.44           *

PacificSource Administrators FSA Contributions and fees 804.92              *

Paramount Supply Valve replacement supplies 31.88                

PERS Employee voluntary contributions - November 2023 482.76              

Quill Office supplies 77.27                

Ritz Safety Test gas 247.13              

SDIS Employee insurance - December 2023 10,874.79         *

SDIS Property and liability insurance - 2024 57,031.00         

Secretary of State Assumed business name renewal 100.00              *

Springfield Utility Board Pump power, fiber optic and 1/2 Weyco power 14,374.38         

Streamline Website hosting 260.00              

Summit Engineering study/water system evaluation 463.75              

USA Bluebook Tools and CL17 maintenance 1,690.12           

USPS Postage for permit 99 2,000.00           

Valvoline Oil change 110.46              

VOYA - ING Deferred comp withholding and expense - December 2023 3,180.32           *

WECO Well motor oil 122.86              

Wildish Rock for service leak repair 348.48              

761,750.25       

Approved by 1/10/2024

RAINBOW WATER DISTRICT 

December 31, 2023



BILLING CYCLE:

Employee Date Vendor Purpose Amount GL No. Receipt

Jamie Porter 

12/4/2023 Microsoft Office software 62.50           5300 Rcrng

12/5/2023 Crash plan Office software 9.99 5300 Rcrng

12/6/2023 Papas Pizza Subsection lunch - Jamie and Wyatt 23.88 5360 X

12/7/2023 Moi Poki SUB Engineers lunch 20.40 5300 X

12/8/2023 Adobe Office software 29.99 5300 Rcrng

12/13/2023 Zoom Office software 15.99 5300 Rcrng

12/20/2023 SDAO Conference registration - James Burrington 365.00 5360 X

12/20/2023 SDAO Conference registratio - Jamie 280.00 5360 X

12/23/2023 Hole in the Wall Lunch with Greg Miller 38.00 5300 X

12/23/2023 Albertsons Christmas Cards 9.99 5300 X

Sub Total 855.74         

Eric Carlson 

12/6/2023 Papas Pizza Subsection lunch - Eric, Brian, Charles and Jodi 38.80           5360 X

12/11/2023 Sizzler LUCC lunch meeting 20.58           5300 X

12/21/2023 Chao Pra Ya Staff lunch 166.75         5300 X

12/26/2023 Fedex DCWA PFAS Samples 236.41         9250 X

Sub Total 462.54         

Brian Scott

12/22/2023 Northwest Fastener Socket Set 165.00         5280 X

Sub Total 165.00         

Wyatt Sayles -                

12/18/2023 Wilco Chase #4 Mat repair 23.48           5250 X

Sub Total 23.48           

Charles Petersen 

No New Charges
Sub Total -                

Jodi Sanders 

12/15/2023 Albertsons Board and Safety meeting snacks 66.08           5300 X

12/22/2023 Albertsons Board snacks 26.98           5300 X

93.06           

Grand Total 1,599.82      

RAINBOW WATER DISTRICT

KEY BANK CHARGES

12/31/2023



Dec 23 Budget % of Budget Jul - Dec 23 YTD Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4010 · Water Sales - District 76,407 74,750 102% 638,292 603,750 106% 1,169,964
4015 · Water Sales-SUB 59,590 57,000 105% 495,399 453,000 109% 792,770
4020 · Service Connection Charges 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 800
4030 · DRC's 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 2,400
4040 · Interest Income-Water 1,553 300 518% 5,820 1,800 323% 3,600
4050 · Reimbursed Labor 152 0 100% 7,511 2,000 376% 2,000
4060 · Account Processing Fees 140 250 56% 1,380 1,500 92% 3,050
4065 · Late Fees 450 0 100% 2,580 0 100% 0
4070 · Reconnection Charges 150 0 100% 725 0 100% 0
4080 · Gain/Loss on  Sale of Assets 0 0 0% 0 4,000 0% 4,000
4085 · Water Fund - Transfers In 0 0 0% 148,216 448,216 33% 448,216
4090 · Miscellaneous Income 68 0 100% 17,216 0 100% 19,500
4095 · Fire Hydrant Maintenance 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 4,700
4100 · Bad Debts Recovered 44 0 100% 602 0 100% 0
4120 · Marcola Contract Income 2,450 1,250 196% 13,859 10,500 132% 18,000
4140 · Shangri La Contract Income 209 500 42% 2,428 3,000 81% 6,000
4160 · DCWA Contract Income 1,617 1,000 162% 11,871 6,000 198% 12,000
4180 · Shenandoah Income 740 500 148% 6,267 3,000 209% 6,000
4190 · Blue River Contract Income 431 500 86% 4,051 3,000 135% 7,000

Total Income 143,999 136,050 106% 1,356,216 1,539,766 88% 2,500,000

Gross Profit 143,999 136,050 106% 1,356,216 1,539,766 88% 2,500,000

Expense
5000 · Personal Services

5001 · Staff Wages
5002 · Salary - Operations 3,411 25,955 0
5004 · Salary - Admin 27,228 155,943 0
5006 · Hourly - Operations 17,522 107,564 0
5008 · Hourly - Admin 3,432 20,883 0
5001 · Staff Wages - Other 0 57,632 0% 0 345,794 0% 695,465

Total 5001 · Staff Wages 51,593 57,632 90% 310,346 345,794 90% 695,465

5010 · Deferred Comp Company Expense 1,513 1,450 104% 9,257 8,700 106% 17,400
5016 · Extra Value Bonus 788 0 100% 21,208 18,000 118% 18,000
5050 · Part Time & Emergency Pay 2,892 2,500 116% 13,217 15,000 88% 30,000
5055 · Vacation Pay Expense 4,807 0 100% 27,424 0 100% 0
5056 · Sick Pay Expense 450 0 100% 6,306 0 100% 0
5057 · Sick Leave Buy Back 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 17,500
5060 · Social Security Expense 2,834 3,900 73% 21,761 23,400 93% 46,800
5065 · Medicare Expense 871 875 100% 5,450 5,500 99% 10,750
5070 · Workers Compensation Expense 0 0 0% 1,262 5,000 25% 7,500
5080 · Employee Insurance Expense 9,177 12,000 76% 55,060 95,411 58% 167,411
5081 · Employee Life Insurance Expense 433 0 100% 2,596 0 100% 0
5082 · FSA Fees 80 0 100% 780 0 100% 0
5083 · OR-WBF Assessment Expense 12 0 100% 73 0 100% 0
5100 · PERS Expense 15,378 14,750 104% 96,672 88,500 109% 177,000
5110 · Unemployment Expense 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0
5120 · Payroll Advance 600 0 100% 600 0 100% 0

Total 5000 · Personal Services 91,427 93,107 98% 572,012 605,305 94% 1,187,826

5200 · Materials & Services
5210 · Purification Expense 2,046 10,000 20% 16,371 60,000 27% 120,000
5215 · Purification Exp-Source 2,278 0 100% 2,278 2,750 83% 5,500
5220 · Telephone & Telemetry 1,768 2,000 88% 9,105 12,000 76% 24,500
5230 · Pump Power & Electric 17,666 20,000 88% 108,800 120,000 91% 240,000
5240 · Maintenance-Vehicles 5,094 3,000 170% 12,228 18,000 68% 36,000
5245 · Maintenance - CWTP 4,522 1,000 452% 10,474 6,000 175% 12,000
5247 · Maintenance - WCCP 0 1,000 0% 6,833 6,000 114% 12,000
5250 · Maintenance-Pumps/Wells 448 500 90% 3,628 3,000 121% 6,000
5260 · Maintenance-Mains 0 500 0% 2,276 3,000 76% 6,000
5270 · Maintenance-Meters & Services 106 500 21% 7,959 3,000 265% 6,000
5275 · Maintenance - Land 0 0 0% 1,500 6,000 25% 9,000
5280 · Maintenance - Other 3,281 500 656% 10,002 3,000 333% 6,000
5285 · Maintenance-Reservoirs 0 0 0% 6,639 0 100% 3,000
5290 · Customer Postage -240 1,250 -19% 5,913 7,500 79% 15,000
5295 · Utility Billing Program Expense 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0
5300 · General Office Expense 1,942 2,000 97% 11,187 10,500 107% 25,500
5305 · Transaction Fee Processing 2,652 2,500 106% 13,475 15,000 90% 30,000
5310 · Special District Expense 0 0 0% 0 2,000 0% 2,000
5320 · Bad Debt Expense 0 125 0% 309 750 41% 1,500
5325 · Contract Workers 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 10,000
5330 · Budget & Election Expense 0 0 0% 2,736 0 100% 2,000
5340 · Community Outreach 7,399 125 5,919% 8,533 750 1,138% 1,500
5360 · Dues, School & Convention Exp 1,834 1,000 183% 6,928 8,000 87% 20,000
5365 · Emergency Preparedness 0 0 0% 950 0 100% 0
5380 · Street Light Expense 459 600 76% 1,920 3,600 53% 7,200
5200 · Materials & Services - Other 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0

Total 5200 · Materials & Services 51,255 46,600 110% 250,043 290,850 86% 600,700

5205 · PFAS/PFOS Expenses 2,531 3,292
5350 · CWTP - Loan / Interest Exp 0 0 0% 148,216 148,216 100% 148,216

4:36 PM Rainbow Water District
01/04/24 Profit & Loss Budget vs Actual-YTD
Accrual Basis December 2023



Dec 23 Budget % of Budget Jul - Dec 23 YTD Budget % of Budget Annual Budget

5400 · Contractual
5410 · Insurance Expense 0 0 0% -232 0 100% 52,000
5420 · Legal Expense 5,103 1,500 340% 7,857 9,000 87% 18,000
5425 · Network - IT 0 500 0% 0 7,000 0% 10,000
5427 · IT - Subscriptions -319 750 -43% 2,569 4,500 57% 9,000
5430 · Audit & Accounting Expense 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 15,660
5440 · Engineering Studies - PFAS 4,370 3,000 146% 16,356 18,000 91% 54,500
5470 · Financial Advisor 0 0 0% 6,977 6,000 116% 6,000
5480 · Engineering Studies 0 0 0% 0 13,000 0% 23,000

Total 5400 · Contractual 9,154 5,750 159% 33,527 57,500 58% 188,160

5500 · Capital Outlay
5510 · Mains 0 0 0% 0 90,000 0% 90,000
5520 · Service Lines 0 0 0% 0 3,000 0% 5,000
5530 · Meters 0 0 0% 0 3,000 0% 5,000
5540 · Hydrants 0 0 0% 0 15,000 0% 20,000
5550 · Tools, Vehicles & Equipment 0 1,000 0% 0 6,000 0% 16,200
5560 · Office Furniture & Equipment 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0
5570 · Well Rehabs 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0
5580 · Wells and Wellfield 0 0 0% 15,650 0 100% 0
5585 · Telemetry & Control System 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 5,000
5590 · Purification Equipment 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0
5595 · Streetlight Replacement 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0
5600 · Reservoirs 0 0 0% 0 25,000 0% 25,000
5610 · Chase Wellfield Development 0 40,000 0% 0 225,000 0% 225,000
5620 · Building & Additions 0 5,000 0% 0 5,000 0% 15,000
5640 · Weyerhaeuser Corrosion Control 0 0 0% 0 0 0% 0

Total 5500 · Capital Outlay 0 46,000 0% 15,650 372,000 4% 406,200

7035 · Capital Res Capital - Vehicles 0 0 0

Total Expense 154,367 191,457 81% 1,022,740 1,473,871 69% 2,531,102

Net Ordinary Income -10,368 -55,407 19% 333,475 65,895 506% -31,102

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

70000 · CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
7010 · Capital Reserve - Interest 2,376 1,000 238% 13,060 6,000 218% 15,000
7020 · Capital Reserve - Transfers In 0 500,000 0% 0 500,000 0% 500,000

Total 70000 · CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 2,376 501,000 0% 13,060 506,000 3% 515,000

70500 · RESILIENCE FUND
7100 · Resilience Fund - Transfers In 0 0 200,000
7110 · Resilience Fund - Interest 2,027 500 405% 11,143 3,000 371% 7,000

Total 70500 · RESILIENCE FUND 2,027 500 405% 11,143 3,000 371% 207,000

8000 · Fire Protection-Income
8010 · Fire Protection - Tax Income 442,452 485,000 91% 1,551,977 1,580,000 98% 1,715,000
8030 · Fire Protection - Interest 8,124 2,500 325% 16,892 4,500 375% 15,000

Total 8000 · Fire Protection-Income 450,576 487,500 92% 1,568,869 1,584,500 99% 1,730,000

Total Other Income 454,979 989,000 46% 1,593,072 2,093,500 76% 2,452,000

Other Expense
6550 · Water Fund - Transfers Out 0 0 200,000
7030 · Capital Reserve - Transfers Out 0 0 0% 0 300,000 0% 300,000
8500 · Fire Protection-Expense

8510 · Fire Protection-Contract Exp -72,005 0 100% -72,005 0 100% 1,238,831
8545 · Fire Fund - Transfers Out 0 500,000 0% 148,216 648,216 23% 648,216

Total 8500 · Fire Protection-Expense -72,005 500,000 -14% 76,211 648,216 12% 1,887,047

Total Other Expense -72,005 500,000 -14% 76,211 948,216 8% 2,387,047

Net Other Income 526,983 489,000 108% 1,516,861 1,145,284 132% 64,953

Net Income 516,616 433,593 119% 1,850,336 1,211,179 153% 33,851



Dec 23 Dec 22 $ Change % Change

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4010 · Water Sales - District 76,407 67,739 8,668 13%
4015 · Water Sales-SUB 59,590 50,455 9,135 18%
4040 · Interest Income-Water 1,553 645 908 141%
4050 · Reimbursed Labor 152 258 -106 -41%
4060 · Account Processing Fees 140 265 -125 -47%
4065 · Late Fees 450 520 -70 -14%
4070 · Reconnection Charges 150 525 -375 -71%
4090 · Miscellaneous Income 68 -1,458 1,526 105%
4100 · Bad Debts Recovered 44 0 44 100%
4120 · Marcola Contract Income 2,450 1,755 695 40%
4140 · Shangri La Contract Income 209 770 -562 -73%
4160 · DCWA Contract Income 1,617 2,160 -543 -25%
4180 · Shenandoah Income 740 337 404 120%
4190 · Blue River Contract Income 431 628 -198 -32%

Total Income 143,999 124,598 19,401 16%

Gross Profit 143,999 124,598 19,401 16%

Expense
5000 · Personal Services

5001 · Staff Wages
5002 · Salary - Operations 3,411 0 3,411 100%
5004 · Salary - Admin 27,228 0 27,228 100%
5006 · Hourly - Operations 17,522 0 17,522 100%
5008 · Hourly - Admin 3,432 0 3,432 100%
5001 · Staff Wages - Other 0 48,033 -48,033 -100%

Total 5001 · Staff Wages 51,593 48,033 3,560 7%

5010 · Deferred Comp Company Expense 1,513 1,271 242 19%
5016 · Extra Value Bonus 788 771 17 2%
5050 · Part Time & Emergency Pay 2,892 2,228 664 30%
5055 · Vacation Pay Expense 4,807 5,242 -436 -8%
5056 · Sick Pay Expense 450 1,597 -1,147 -72%
5057 · Sick Leave Buy Back 0 0 0 0%
5060 · Social Security Expense 2,834 2,680 154 6%
5065 · Medicare Expense 871 822 49 6%
5080 · Employee Insurance Expense 9,177 10,604 -1,428 -14%
5081 · Employee Life Insurance Expense 433 475 -43 -9%
5082 · FSA Fees 80 80 0 0%
5083 · OR-WBF Assessment Expense 12 13 -1 -8%
5100 · PERS Expense 15,378 13,810 1,569 11%
5110 · Unemployment Expense 0 0 0 0%
5120 · Payroll Advance 600 0 600 100%

Total 5000 · Personal Services 91,427 87,626 3,801 4%

5200 · Materials & Services
5210 · Purification Expense 2,046 6,605 -4,559 -69%
5215 · Purification Exp-Source 2,278 0 2,278 100%
5220 · Telephone & Telemetry 1,768 1,969 -201 -10%
5230 · Pump Power & Electric 17,666 14,335 3,331 23%
5240 · Maintenance-Vehicles 5,094 1,944 3,150 162%
5245 · Maintenance - CWTP 4,522 6,912 -2,390 -35%
5247 · Maintenance - WCCP 0 791 -791 -100%
5250 · Maintenance-Pumps/Wells 448 516 -67 -13%
5260 · Maintenance-Mains 0 1,366 -1,366 -100%
5270 · Maintenance-Meters & Services 106 2,044 -1,938 -95%
5280 · Maintenance - Other 3,281 835 2,446 293%
5285 · Maintenance-Reservoirs 0 452 -452 -100%
5290 · Customer Postage -240 1,312 -1,552 -118%
5295 · Utility Billing Program Expense 0 -117 117 100%
5300 · General Office Expense 1,942 1,089 852 78%
5305 · Transaction Fee Processing 2,652 1,047 1,605 153%
5340 · Community Outreach 7,399 0 7,399 100%

Rainbow Water District
Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison

December 2023



Dec 23 Dec 22 $ Change % Change

5360 · Dues, School & Convention Exp 1,834 1,005 829 83%
5380 · Street Light Expense 459 481 -22 -5%

Total 5200 · Materials & Services 51,255 42,586 8,669 20%

5205 · PFAS/PFOS Expenses 2,531 0 2,531 100%
5400 · Contractual

5420 · Legal Expense 5,103 2,808 2,295 82%
5427 · IT - Subscriptions -319 3,664 -3,983 -109%
5440 · Engineering Studies - PFAS 4,370 0 4,370 100%
5480 · Engineering Studies 0 4,136 -4,136 -100%

Total 5400 · Contractual 9,154 10,608 -1,454 -14%

5500 · Capital Outlay
5510 · Mains 0 668 -668 -100%
5580 · Wells and Wellfield 0 3,207 -3,207 -100%
5590 · Purification Equipment 0 36 -36 -100%
5595 · Streetlight Replacement 0 1,257 -1,257 -100%
5620 · Building & Additions 0 9,608 -9,608 -100%

Total 5500 · Capital Outlay 0 14,776 -14,776 -100%

Total Expense 154,367 155,596 -1,229 -1%

Net Ordinary Income -10,368 -30,998 20,631 67%

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

70000 · CAPITAL RESERVE FUND
7010 · Capital Reserve - Interest 2,376 1,742 633 36%
7020 · Capital Reserve - Transfers In 0 300,000 -300,000 -100%

Total 70000 · CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 2,376 301,742 -299,367 -99%

70500 · RESILIENCE FUND
7110 · Resilience Fund - Interest 2,027 849 1,178 139%

Total 70500 · RESILIENCE FUND 2,027 849 1,178 139%

8000 · Fire Protection-Income
8010 · Fire Protection - Tax Income 442,452 486,932 -44,479 -9%
8030 · Fire Protection - Interest 8,124 3,969 4,154 105%

Total 8000 · Fire Protection-Income 450,576 490,901 -40,325 -8%

Total Other Income 454,979 793,493 -338,514 -43%

Other Expense
8500 · Fire Protection-Expense

8510 · Fire Protection-Contract Exp -72,005 0 -72,005 -100%
8545 · Fire Fund - Transfers Out 0 300,000 -300,000 -100%

Total 8500 · Fire Protection-Expense -72,005 300,000 -372,005 -124%

Total Other Expense -72,005 300,000 -372,005 -124%

Net Other Income 526,983 493,493 33,490 7%

Net Income 516,616 462,495 54,121 12%



Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 TOTAL

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4010 · Water Sales - District 67,739 64,756 66,546 66,013 68,625 72,258 191,718 104,468 159,869 126,450 92,338 78,761 76,407 1,235,947
4015 · Water Sales-SUB 50,455 54,866 52,136 57,740 58,520 70,844 85,907 114,703 118,180 79,660 64,756 58,511 59,590 925,866
4020 · Service Connection Charges 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,515 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,515
4040 · Interest Income-Water 645 657 348 302 387 652 507 226 178 580 1,798 1,484 1,553 9,317
4050 · Reimbursed Labor 258 310 0 0 597 0 2,771 0 760 4,080 1,226 1,292 152 11,446
4060 · Account Processing Fees 265 150 190 145 115 285 230 220 255 305 205 255 140 2,760
4065 · Late Fees 520 430 420 410 450 420 430 470 350 450 500 360 450 5,660
4070 · Reconnection Charges 525 25 50 95 200 150 150 200 125 50 150 50 150 1,920
4085 · Water Fund - Transfers In 0 0 0 0 0 128,740 0 0 0 0 148,216 0 0 276,956
4090 · Miscellaneous Income -1,458 245 -74 0 0 68 136 45 966 957 11,228 3,952 68 16,132
4095 · Fire Hydrant Maintenance 0 0 0 0 0 5,113 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,113
4100 · Bad Debts Recovered 0 0 0 0 115 0 0 558 0 0 0 0 44 716
4120 · Marcola Contract Income 1,755 1,756 1,008 1,879 3,212 2,783 7,303 1,479 3,486 2,229 1,528 2,688 2,450 33,555
4140 · Shangri La Contract Income 770 249 402 314 596 459 321 276 572 498 409 464 209 5,538
4160 · DCWA Contract Income 2,160 2,859 915 4,653 1,201 1,446 917 969 1,139 1,147 2,931 4,069 1,617 26,021
4180 · Shenandoah Income 337 432 408 499 1,012 482 447 630 2,211 855 1,313 518 740 9,882
4190 · Blue River Contract Income 628 770 1,317 543 706 3,559 901 635 617 1,153 617 599 431 12,475

Total Income 124,598 127,504 123,665 132,591 135,735 287,258 294,253 224,877 288,708 218,413 327,215 153,003 143,999 2,581,820

Gross Profit 124,598 127,504 123,665 132,591 135,735 287,258 294,253 224,877 288,708 218,413 327,215 153,003 143,999 2,581,820

Expense
5000 · Personal Services 87,626 86,468 81,587 86,603 83,629 87,000 107,287 116,754 92,723 89,053 91,625 90,429 91,427 1,192,212

5200 · Materials & Services 42,586 46,216 45,982 45,368 48,422 40,757 106,744 1,932 65,082 53,971 46,909 30,895 51,255 626,118

5205 · PFAS/PFOS Expenses 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 761 2,531 3,292
5350 · CWTP - Loan / Interest Exp 0 0 0 0 0 0 -106,958 0 0 0 0 148,216 0 41,258
5400 · Contractual 10,608 58,878 141 9,424 3,498 10,921 21,749 -152 522 5,835 8,118 10,050 9,154 148,748

5500 · Capital Outlay 14,776 12,405 6,945 0 0 25,249 57,461 0 0 15,650 0 0 0 132,486

7035 · Capital Res Capital - Vehicles 0 0 0 0 0 0 116,798 0 0 0 0 0 0 116,798

Total Expense 155,596 203,967 134,655 141,396 135,549 163,927 303,080 118,535 158,328 164,509 146,652 280,350 154,367 2,260,911

Net Ordinary Income -30,998 -76,463 -10,989 -8,805 186 123,331 -8,827 106,343 130,380 53,904 180,563 -127,347 -10,368 320,909

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

70000 · CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 301,742 2,230 2,236 2,495 2,423 2,324 2,047 1,915 2,067 2,103 2,309 2,290 2,376 328,557

70500 · RESILIENCE FUND 849 975 977 1,092 1,060 1,100 122,190 1,634 1,764 1,795 1,970 1,953 2,027 139,386

8000 · Fire Protection-Income 490,901 23,948 16,430 38,980 9,821 7,804 36,849 2,491 5,508 4,110 3,608 1,102,576 450,576 2,193,601

Total Other Income 793,493 27,153 19,644 42,567 13,303 11,228 161,085 6,041 9,338 8,008 7,887 1,106,819 454,979 2,661,544

4:35 PM Rainbow Water District

01/04/24 Profit & Loss

Accrual Basis December 2022 through December 2023



Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23 Jul 23 Aug 23 Sep 23 Oct 23 Nov 23 Dec 23 TOTAL

Other Expense
5700 · Capital Outlay Offset 0 0 0 0 0 0 -349,139 0 0 0 0 0 0 -349,139
6540 · Depreciation Expense 0 0 0 0 0 0 240,118 0 0 0 0 0 0 240,118
6550 · Water Fund - Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 0 121,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 121,000
7030 · Capital Reserve - Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 0 128,740 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 128,740
8500 · Fire Protection-Expense 300,000 619,416 0 309,708 0 0 309,708 0 0 0 148,216 0 -72,005 1,615,042

Total Other Expense 300,000 619,416 0 309,708 0 128,740 321,686 0 0 0 148,216 0 -72,005 1,755,761

Net Other Income 493,493 -592,263 19,644 -267,141 13,303 -117,512 -160,601 6,041 9,338 8,008 -140,329 1,106,819 526,983 905,784

Net Income 462,495 -668,726 8,654 -275,945 13,488 5,819 -169,428 112,383 139,719 61,912 40,234 979,473 516,616 1,226,693



Dec 31, 23

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1010 · Petty Cash 150
1030 · Key Bank Civic Pay 42,400
1040 · Key Bank Money Market 22,621
1052 · Key Bank General Checking 39,995
1055 · LGIP - Capital Reserve Fund 561,789
1060 · LGIP-Water Fund 385,488
1065 · LGIP-Fire Fund 1,938,718
1068 · LGIP - Resilience Fund 479,326

Total Checking/Savings 3,470,486

Accounts Receivable
1310 · Accounts Receivable-Water 63,929
1312 · Accounts Receivable - Fees 240
1313 · Accounts Receivable - Late Fees 20
1315 · Accounts Receivable-CONTRACT 64,712
1320 · Accounts Receivable-OTHER 25
1322 · Accounts Receivable - DCWA 1,848
1324 · Accounts Receivable - BRWD 1,446
1330 · Return Checks - RWD 37
1331 · Return Checks - Other Dist. 31
1335 · Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -1,200
1410 · Fire Fund Taxes Receivable 63,495

Total Accounts Receivable 194,584

Other Current Assets
12001 · Civic Pay 98 Recon Account 1,135
1500 · Material & Supply Inventory 55,056
1510 · Pension Asset GASB68 -803,851
1520 · Net OPEB Asset (Liab) -10,181
1600 · Prepaid Insurance 24,571

Total Other Current Assets -733,271

Total Current Assets 2,931,799

Fixed Assets
1810 · Land 174,292
1820 · Wells 1,192,778
1830 · Pumping Equipment 299,454
1835 · Telemetry & Control System 186,443
1840 · Purification Equipment 87,081
1850 · Reservoirs 1,958,342
1860 · Transmission Mains 389,778
1870 · Distribution Mains 1,468,360
1880 · Service Lines 165,953
1890 · Meters 460,567
1900 · Hydrants 64,779
1910 · Buildings & Bridges 180,839
1920 · Tools, Vehicles, and Equipment 378,865
1930 · Office Furniture & Equipment 68,369
1940 · Weyco Corrosion Control 69,505
1950 · Chase Wellfield Development 1,071,067
1960 · Emergency Center - Moe Security 13,665
1970 · Chase Water Treatment Plant 2,930,572
1980 · Streetlight Replacement 11,018
1990 · Accumulated Depreciation -4,313,810

Total Fixed Assets 6,857,916

TOTAL ASSETS 9,789,715

Rainbow Water District
Balance Sheet

As of December 31, 2023



Dec 31, 23

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities

2210 · Customer Deposits 17,380
2212 · Customer Donations 19
2220 · Deferred Taxes-Fire Fund -11,558
2310 · Social Security WH 5,668
2315 · Medicare WH 1,742
2320 · Federal WH 6,421
2350 · PERS Payable 19,010
2353 · PERS Employee Voluntary Cont. 481
2360 · Employee Insurance WH 10,442
2361 · Employee Life Insurance 433
2362 · Flexible Spending Account WH 805
2365 · Health Reimbursement Account 15,217
2370 · Deferred Budget Billing -17,016
2400 · Deferred Comp WH 1,667
2410 · 457b Company Contribution 1,513
2420 · Accrued Vacation Pay 33,627
2500 · Deferred Outflows GASB68 -494,335
2510 · Deferred Inflows GASB68 612,048
2550 · Deferred Inflows GASB 75 1,861
2560 · Deferred Outflows GASB 75 -2,639
9100 · MWD - Customer Payments 75
9150 · MWD - Invoices 453
9250 · DCWA - Invoices 207
9450 · Shenandoah Invoices 0
9550 · BRWD - Invoices 162

Total Other Current Liabilities 203,683

Total Current Liabilities 203,683

Long Term Liabilities
2445 · Long Term Debt - CWTP 2,049,758
2447 · LTD CWTP - Interest Accrual 23,564

Total Long Term Liabilities 2,073,323

Total Liabilities 2,277,006

Equity
32000 · Retained Earnings 2,277,485
3210 · Cont. in Aid of Construction 2,869,723
3230 · Retained Earnings - Fire 515,165
Net Income 1,850,336

Total Equity 7,512,709

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 9,789,715



DIVIDER PAGE 

ITEMS for

BOARD ACTION



DIVIDER PAGE 

PROGRAM REVIEW



Credit: George H. Taylor, State Climatologist, from the Lane County website



December 28, 2023  Creswell Chronicle summarizing State of the City speech.

jamie
Highlight







42nd St. Levee – Background

• Built in 1959-60 by USDA & Lane County
• East side of 42nd Street from Marcola Rd. to north of International

Paper entrance
• Protect farmland and limited development from 2% AEP (50-yr)

McKenzie flood elevation with 3 ft of freeboard minimum
• Lowest levee crest elevation is approx. the Base Flood (1% AEP or

100-yr) flood elevation

• Flood protection for about 24,000 people, 7,500 structures and about
$4 billion in property value (2018)

2

Credit: Ken Vogeney, Springfield Emergency Manager



3



Levee Deficiencies

• Crest Elevation

• Rip Rap

• Vegetation

• Channel Migration

5



Channel 
Migration

7

1953



Channel 
Migration

8

1965



Channel 
Migration

9

2022



Levee Next Steps

• Post the Emergency Action Plan to the City’s website. 

• Provide community outreach and education about the Levee. 

• Congress authorized the Corps of Engineers to work with City to 
evaluate ways to stabilize the channel migration and modernize the 
levee to current federal standards, including addressing climate 
change, the Holiday Farm Fire and other recent fires

• After improvements are constructed, update the FEMA floodplain 
maps

11



DIVIDER PAGE 

 

INFORMATION ONLY 

 




















